

SENATE BILL NO. 507—COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

JUNE 2, 2003

Referred to Committee on Finance

SUMMARY—Authorizes and provides funding for certain projects of capital improvement. (BDR S-1377)

FISCAL NOTE: Effect on Local Government: No.  
Effect on the State: Contains Appropriation included in Executive Budget.

~

EXPLANATION – Matter in *bolded italics* is new; matter between brackets ~~omitted material~~ is material to be omitted.

AN ACT relating to projects of capital improvement; requiring the repayment for certain projects by certain state agencies; authorizing certain expenditures by the State Public Works Board; levying a property tax to support the consolidated bond interest and redemption fund; making appropriations; and providing other matters properly relating thereto.

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NEVADA, REPRESENTED IN SENATE AND ASSEMBLY, DO ENACT AS FOLLOWS:

1 **Section 1.** The State Board of Finance shall issue general  
2 obligation bonds of the State of Nevada in the face amount of not  
3 more than \$150,090,519 for the capital improvements summarized  
4 in this section. This amount is allocated to projects numbered and  
5 described in the executive budget for the Fiscal Years 2003-2004  
6 and 2004-2005 or otherwise described as follows:

7	8 <b>Description</b>	9 <b>Project No.</b>	10 <b>Amount</b>
11	1. Capital Improvements for the		
12	Department of Corrections:		
13	Renovate windows and showers at		
	NNCC .....	03-M17	\$942,007



1	Exercise area security		
2	improvements for HDSP.....	03-M18	\$31,185
3	Relocate water lines away from		
4	transformer at SDCC.....	03-M19	71,735
5	Groundwater protection projects at		
6	HCC & CCC .....	03-M20	1,107,981
7	Install heat exchanger on cooling		
8	system at HDSP .....	03-M35	280,376
9	Repair condensate return system at		
10	SDCC .....	03-M37	1,488,344
11	Upgrade pedestrian entrance area		
12	at SDCC .....	03-M38	61,662
13	Construct weather enclosure for		
14	housing unit 10 gun post at NSP..	03M-48	131,555
15	Replace existing cell doors in		
16	housing units at NSP.....	03-M49	155,178
17	Repair and upgrade exercise areas		
18	units 1-8 at ESP.....	03-M70	245,904
19	Culinary repairs at LCC.....	03-M71	204,348
20	2. Capital Improvements for the		
21	Office of the Military:		
22	Readiness center for Nevada		
23	National Guard at Henderson.....	03-P5	\$440,129
24	3. Capital Improvements for the		
25	University and Community		
26	College System of Nevada:		
27	TMCC Dandini Campus fire flow		
28	pump station upgrade.....	03-C2	\$540,692
29	Furnishings, equipment, and		
30	buildout of TMCC hi-tech center		
31	at the Redfield Campus.....	03-C3	1,646,116
32	Furnishings and equipment for the		
33	CCSN Cheyenne Campus		
34	telecommunications building.....	03-C4	4,000,000
35	Construction of health sciences		
36	building on West Charleston		
37	Campus of CCSN.....	03-C21	19,705,335
38	UNLV science engineering and		
39	technology complex construction .	03-C23	35,326,401
40	Maxey Science Center, Building		
41	Renovations and Addition, DRI..	03-C91L	1,900,000
42	Campus-wide Fire and Life-Safety		
43	Retrofits, UNR .....	03-C94L	750,000
44	Land Acquisition for Women's		
45	Athletics Program, UNR.....	03-C95L	5,000,000



1	Renovation of Former Mesquite		
2	High School for CSSN.....03-C96L	\$750,000	
3	Security System and Equipment		
4	Upgrades at Various Campuses,		
5	CCSN.....03-C97L	500,000	
6	Establishment of Oral Health		
7	Clinic, GBC.....03-C98L	250,000	
8	Study and Design of Heart		
9	Transplant Facility and		
10	Construction of Embalming		
11	Facility and Plasticization Lab,		
12	UNR School of Medicine.....03-C99L	1,700,000	
13	Design electrical and industrial		
14	technology building at GBC .....03-P5.6	132,977	
15	Math and Science Center		
16	Programming, Schematic Design		
17	and Preliminary Cost Estimate,		
18	UNR .....03-P10L	500,000	
19	Renovation of Getchell Library,		
20	Programming.....03-P11L	400,000	
21	Student Services Addition, UNLV,		
22	Design through Construction		
23	Documents .....03-P12L	500,000	
24	Campus Improvements-UCCSN		
25	System.....03-U1L	100,000	
26	Campus Improvements-UNLV .....03-U2L	3,231,261	
27	Campus Improvements-UNR .....03-U3L	3,796,839	
28	Campus Improvements-CCSN .....03-U4L	976,542	
29	Campus Improvements-DRI.....03-U5L	301,755	
30	Campus Improvements-GBC .....03-U6L	251,953	
31	Campus Improvements-TMCC .....03-U7L	696,650	
32	Campus Improvements-WNCC.....03-U8L	645,000	
33	4. Capital Improvements for the		
34	Department of Conservation and		
35	Natural Resources:		
36	Rehabilitate western region		
37	headquarters, Division of		
38	Forestry .....03-C16	\$604,709	
39	Replace floor at Jean Conservation		
40	Camp.....03-M24	16,694	
41	Expand shop at Pioche		
42	Conservation Camp.....03-M52	149,282	
43	5. Capital Improvements for the		
44	Department of Human Resources:		



1	150-bed psychiatric hospital at		
2	SNAMHS.....	03-C1	\$32,168,576
3	New metal building for		
4	recreational use at Caliente Youth		
5	Center.....	03-C17	464,065
6	Upgrade electric strike door-release		
7	system in 10 buildings at Desert		
8	Regional Center .....	03-M8	196,553
9	Install fire sprinklers in the multi-		
10	purpose building at NYTC.....	03-M11	72,956
11	Renovate swimming pool at the		
12	Caliente Youth Center.....	03-M26	303,389
13	Renovate heating systems in cottages		
14	at Caliente Youth Center.....	03-M27	558,832
15	Replace hot water tanks in cottages		
16	at Caliente Youth Center.....	03-M27A	306,399
17	Replace kitchenettes and		
18	appliances at Caliente Youth		
19	Center.....	03-M54	220,384
20	Renovate central kitchen-		
21	NNAMHS .....	03-M63	1,272,422
22	Remodel kitchen, replace		
23	equipment, and upgrade floors at		
24	Lake's Crossing .....	03-M64	671,203
25	Feasibility study for a 50-bed		
26	forensic facility-SNAMHS .....	03-P4	143,547
27	6. Capital Improvements for the		
28	Department of Administration:		
29	Phase II of the remodel of building		
30	#17 at the Stewart facility .....	03-C7	\$268,759
31	Lease-purchase state office		
32	building for the Department of		
33	Conservation and Natural		
34	Resources .....	03-C50	3,100,000
35	Repair exterior tile at the Grant		
36	Sawyer state office building.....	03-M1	251,162
37	Repair exterior sidewalks at Grant		
38	Sawyer state office building.....	03-M2	45,904
39	Seismic strengthening of the		
40	capitol annex .....	03-M4	443,236
41	HVAC system upgrades for the		
42	capitol building and the capitol		
43	building annex.....	03-M21	560,506
44	HVAC system upgrades at the		
45	State Printing facility .....	03-M22	667,902



1	Repairs to stucco at Library and		
2	Archives building.....	03-M23	\$47,444
3	Upgrade temperature control		
4	system in buildings #6 and 107 at		
5	Stewart facility.....	03-M51	773,319
6	Structural evaluation of Kinkead		
7	building, Carson City.....	03-P1	65,323
8	Facility use study for Campos		
9	building, Las Vegas.....	03-P2	35,000
10	Statewide Roofing Program.....	03-S1	2,323,780
11	Statewide ADA Program.....	03-S2	637,376
12	Statewide Fire Sprinkler Program.....	03-S3	2,347,192
13	Statewide Advance Planning		
14	Program.....	03-S4	303,750
15	Statewide Paving Program.....	03-S5	1,333,333
16	Statewide Asbestos, Lead, Mold,		
17	IAQ Program.....	03-S6	264,085
18	7. Capital Improvements for the		
19	Department of Information		
20	Technology:		
21	Addition to and renovation of state		
22	computer facility.....	03-C10	\$5,167,283
23	Microwave renovations on		
24	mountaintop communications		
25	facility.....	03-C11	990,134
26	Extend state's communications		
27	backbone to the Stewart Complex	03-C13	505,324
28	Building security enhancements at		
29	all DoIT facilities.....	03-M46	70,575
30	8. Capital Improvements for the		
31	Department of Cultural Affairs:		
32	Design for improved ADA access		
33	at Nevada State Museum in		
34	Carson City.....	03-C19	\$28,657
35	New office for Comstock Historic		
36	District Commission in Virginia		
37	City.....	03-C52	701,273
38	Deferred maintenance projects at		
39	Nevada State Museum in Las		
40	Vegas.....	03-M12	156,480
41	Upgrade temperature controls,		
42	valves and ventilation boxes at		
43	the Nevada State Museum and		
44	Historical Society building in Las		
45	Vegas.....	03-M47	275,170



1	Exterior repairs, flooring		
2	replacements and HVAC		
3	Upgrades at Nevada State		
4	Museum in Carson City .....	03-M67	\$1,474,560
5	9. Capital Improvements for the		
6	Department of Public Safety:		
7	New state emergency operations		
8	center-Carson City .....	03-C6	\$571,175
9	10. Capital Improvements for the		
10	Department of Agriculture:		
11	Design new office building .....	03-P3	\$270,881
12	11. Capital Improvements for the		
13	Commission on Economic		
14	Development:		
15	Purchase and renovation of 120		
16	miles of Nevada Northern		
17	Railroad Track .....	03-C92L	\$500,000

18 **Sec. 2.** Any remaining balance of the allocated amounts  
19 authorized in section 1 of this act must not be committed for  
20 expenditure after June 30, 2007, and reverts to the Bond Interest and  
21 Redemption Account in the Consolidated Bond Interest and  
22 Redemption Fund as soon as all payments of money committed  
23 have been made.

24 **Sec. 3.** 1. The State Board of Finance may issue the bonds  
25 authorized pursuant to section 1 of this act at the time deemed  
26 appropriate by the Board based on the schedule established for the  
27 completion of the projects described in that section.

28 2. The State Controller may advance temporarily from the  
29 State General Fund, upon the approval of the Chief of the Budget  
30 Division of the Department of Administration, to the State Public  
31 Works Board, until the date on which bonds authorized by section 1  
32 of this act are sold, amounts necessary to facilitate the start of the  
33 projects enumerated in section 1 of this act. The State Controller  
34 shall not advance more than the face amount of the bonds authorized  
35 to be issued. The advanced amounts must be repaid immediately to  
36 the State General Fund upon the sale of the bonds.

37 3. The Chief of the Budget Division of the Department of  
38 Administration shall notify the State Controller and the Fiscal  
39 Analysis Division of the Legislative Counsel Bureau of the approval  
40 of an advance from the State General Fund to the State Public  
41 Works Board pursuant to subsection 2.

42 **Sec. 4.** Commencing on July 1, 2005, the Department of  
43 Information Technology shall repay in annual installments to the  
44 State Treasurer for deposit to the Bond Interest and Redemption  
45 Account in the Consolidated Bond Interest and Redemption Fund



1 the cost of the following projects authorized pursuant to section 1 of  
2 this act:

- 3 1. Project 03-C10, addition to and renovation of state computer
- 4 facility in Carson City;
- 5 2. Project 03-C11, microwave renovations on mountaintop
- 6 communications facilities;
- 7 3. Project 03-C13, extend state's communications backbone to
- 8 the Stewart Complex; and
- 9 4. Project 03-M46, building security enhancements at all DoIT
- 10 facilities.

11 Each installment must be equal to 5 percent of the total cost of the  
12 completed project, including the costs of debt service that are  
13 incurred.

14 **Sec. 5.** Commencing on July 1, 2005, the State Purchasing  
15 Division of the Department of Administration shall repay in annual  
16 installments to the State Treasurer for deposit to the Bond Interest  
17 and Redemption Account in the Consolidated Bond Interest and  
18 Redemption Fund its portion of the cost of the project numbered and  
19 described in the executive budget for Fiscal Years 2003-2004 and  
20 2004-2005 or otherwise described as project 03-S1, statewide  
21 roofing program. Each installment must be equal to 5 percent of the  
22 total cost of the completed project, including the costs of debt  
23 service that are incurred.

24 **Sec. 6.** There is hereby appropriated from the State Highway  
25 Fund to the State Public Works Board the sum of \$16,685,635 to  
26 support the Board in carrying out the program of capital  
27 improvements summarized in this section. This amount is allocated  
28 to projects numbered and described in the executive budget for the  
29 Fiscal Years 2003-2004 and 2004-2005 or otherwise described as  
30 follows:

31	32	33	34	35	36	37	38	39	40	41	42	43	44	45
	<b>Description</b>		<b>Project No.</b>											
	1. Expand shop and communications facilities at new NHP headquarters building in Las Vegas.....		03-C8											\$563,305
	2. New DMV field services office in North Las Vegas .....		03-C9											\$9,626,364
	3. Land acquisition for new DMV office in south Reno .....		03-C15											\$4,369,285
	4. West Flamingo DMV intersection payment .....		03-C22											\$33,996
	5. Install new counters at East Sahara DMV office .....		03-M32											\$1,125,451



- 1           6. Carson City DMV HVAC..... 03-M91           \$947,234
- 2           7. Statewide Roofing Program .....03-S1           \$20,000

3       **Sec. 7.** Any remaining balance of the appropriations made by  
4 section 6 of this act must not be committed for expenditure after  
5 June 30, 2007, and reverts to the State Highway Fund as soon as all  
6 payments of money committed have been made.

7       **Sec. 8.** The amounts appropriated pursuant to section 6 of this  
8 act from the State Highway Fund must be allocated by the State  
9 Controller as the money is required for the projects and must not be  
10 transferred to the projects from the State Highway Fund until  
11 required to make contract payments.

12       **Sec. 9.** The State Public Works Board shall transfer the sum of  
13 \$314,468 from the amounts allocated or appropriated pursuant to  
14 section 1 of chapter 542, Statutes of Nevada 1999, at pages 2822  
15 to 2836, inclusive, from the projects identified in this section to  
16 projects as authorized in section 11 of this act.

18 <b>Description</b>	19 <b>Project No.</b>	20 <b>Amount</b>
21       1. Remodel Carson City Courthouse 22             for the Office of the Attorney 23             General.....	24                               99-C4	25       \$24,000
26       2. Repair 21 housing unit wing gates, 27             Southern Desert Correctional 28             Center.....	29                               99-M29	30       \$123,000
31       3. Improve shower stalls in housing 32             units, Nevada State Prison .....	33                               99-M30	34       \$80,000
35       4. Sewer line upgrades, Phase II at 36             Stewart Complex, Carson City .....	37                               99-M5	38       \$17,411
39       5. Replace fencing and gates, 40             SNAMHS, Las Vegas .....	41                               99-M10	42       \$33,467
43       6. Exterior safety lighting and pool 44             cover, SNCAS, Las Vegas .....	45                               99-M18	46       \$22,207
47       7. Advance planning through 48             construction documents for 49             addition and remodel of Special 50             Children's Clinic, Reno .....	51                               99-S4B	52       \$14,383

53       **Sec. 10.** The State Public Works Board shall transfer the sum  
54 of \$2,501,619 from the amounts allocated pursuant to sections 1 and  
55 4 of chapter 585, Statutes of Nevada 2001, at pages 2991 to 2996,  
56 inclusive, from the projects identified in this section to projects as  
57 authorized in section 11 of this act:





1	Description	Project No.	Amount
2			
3	1. New State Motor Pool building.....	01-C4	\$2,436,435
4	2. Upgrade exercise areas of units		
5	1-8 at ESP .....	01-M30	\$13,412
6	3. Replace windows in housing		
7	units 1-4 at NNCC .....	01-M33	\$47,825
8	4. Upgrade pedestrian entrance		
9	area at SDCC.....	01-M38	\$3,947

**Sec. 11.** The State Public Works Board shall use the \$2,816,087 transferred from the projects identified in sections 9 and 10 of this act to support the Board in carrying out the program of capital improvements summarized in this section. This amount is allocated to projects numbered and described in the executive budget for the Fiscal Years 2003-2004 and 2004-2005 or otherwise described as follows:

18	Description	Project No.	Amount
19			
20	1. 150-bed psychiatric hospital at		
21	SNAMHS .....	03-C1	\$70,057
22	2. Phase II of the remodel of		
23	building #17 at the Stewart		
24	facility .....	03-C7	\$2,477,846
25	3. Repair exterior tile at the Grant		
26	Sawyer state office building.....	03-M1	\$65,184
27	4. Renovate windows and showers		
28	at NNCC .....	03-M17	\$203,000

**Sec. 12.** Any remaining balance of the allocated amounts in section 11 of this act must not be committed for expenditure after June 30, 2007, and reverts to the fund of origin as soon as all payments of money committed have been made.

**Sec. 13.** The State Public Works Board shall transfer the sum of \$1,177,283 from the amounts appropriated pursuant to section 12 of chapter 585, Statutes of Nevada 2001, at page 2998, for project 01-M1, Renovate HVAC system in east wing of DMV & PS building, Carson City, to the project numbered and described in the executive budget for the Fiscal Years 2003-2004 and 2004-2005 or otherwise described as project 03-M91, Carson City DMV HVAC.

**Sec. 14.** Any remaining balance of the allocated amounts in section 13 of this act must not be committed for expenditure after June 30, 2007, and reverts to the fund of origin as soon as all payments of money committed have been made.

**Sec. 15.** Expenditure of the following sums not appropriated from the State General Fund or the State Highway Fund is hereby



1 authorized for the following projects numbered and described in the  
2 executive budget for the Fiscal Years 2003-2004 and 2004-2005 or  
3 otherwise described as follows:

4	Description	Project No.	Amount
5	1. Rehabilitate state fish		
6	hatcheries, phase II.....	03-C12	\$14,500,000
7	2. Petroleum laboratory addition-		
8	Department of Agriculture .....	03-C18	\$1,216,582
9	3. Construction of health sciences		
10	building on West Charleston		
11	Campus of CCSN.....	03-C21	\$500,000
12	4. Science engineering and		
13	technology complex construction,		
14	UNLV .....	03-C23	\$25,000,000
15	5. Maxey Science Center, Building		
16	Renovations and Addition, DRI..	03-C91L	\$200,000
17	6. Readiness center for Nevada		
18	National Guard in Henderson .....	03-P5	\$813,000
19	7. Statewide Asbestos, Lead,		
20	Mold, IAQ Program.....	03-S6	\$500,000

21 **Sec. 16.** The State Public Works Board shall not execute a  
22 contract for the construction of the following projects until the  
23 Board has determined that the money authorized for those projects  
24 pursuant to section 15 of this act is available for expenditure for  
25 those projects and cannot be expended for other purposes:  
26  
27

28	Description	Project No.
29	1. Science engineering and	
30	technology complex construction,	
31	UNLV .....	03-C23
32	2. Maxey Science Center, Building	
33	Renovations and Addition, DRI.....	03-C91L

34 **Sec. 17.** 1. The State Controller may advance temporarily  
35 from the State General Fund, upon the approval of the Chief of the  
36 Budget Division of the Department of Administration, to the State  
37 Public Works Board, until the date on which the sums not  
38 appropriated from the State General Fund or the State Highway  
39 Fund for project 03-P5, readiness center for Nevada National Guard  
40 in Henderson, are received, amounts necessary to facilitate the start  
41 of the project. The advanced amounts must be repaid immediately to  
42 the State General Fund upon the receipt of the sums not  
43  
44



1 appropriated from the State General Fund or the State Highway  
2 Fund.

3 2. The Chief of the Budget Division of the Department of  
4 Administration shall notify the State Controller and the Fiscal  
5 Analysis Division of the Legislative Counsel Bureau of the approval  
6 of an advance from the State General Fund to the State Public  
7 Works Board pursuant to subsection 1.

8 **Sec. 18.** The State Public Works Board shall carry out the  
9 provisions of this act as provided in chapter 341 of NRS. The Board  
10 shall ensure that qualified persons are employed to accomplish the  
11 authorized work. Every contract pertaining to the work must be  
12 approved by the Attorney General.

13 **Sec. 19.** All state and local governmental agencies involved in  
14 the design and construction of the projects enumerated in this act  
15 shall cooperate with the State Public Works Board to expedite the  
16 completion of the project.

17 **Sec. 20.** 1. An ad valorem tax of 16 cents on each \$100 of  
18 assessed valuation of taxable property is hereby levied for the fiscal  
19 year commencing July 1, 2003, and ending June 30, 2004, and an ad  
20 valorem tax of 16 cents on each \$100 of assessed valuation of  
21 taxable property is hereby levied for the fiscal year commencing  
22 July 1, 2004, and ending June 30, 2005. The taxes levied must be  
23 collected in the manner provided in chapter 361 of NRS on all  
24 taxable property in this state including the net proceeds of minerals  
25 and excluding such property as is by law exempt from taxation.  
26 Notwithstanding the provisions of NRS 361.453 to the contrary, 1  
27 cent of the levies imposed pursuant to this subsection must not be  
28 included in calculating the limitation set forth in subsection 1 of  
29 NRS 361.453 on the total ad valorem tax levied for all public  
30 purposes.

31 2. An ad valorem tax of 1 cent on each \$100 of assessed  
32 valuation of taxable property is hereby levied for the fiscal year  
33 commencing July 1, 2003, and ending June 30, 2004, and an ad  
34 valorem tax of 1 cent on each \$100 of assessed valuation of taxable  
35 property is hereby levied for the fiscal year commencing July 1,  
36 2004, and ending June 30, 2005. The taxes levied must be collected  
37 in the manner provided in chapter 361 of NRS on all taxable  
38 property in this state including the net proceeds of minerals and  
39 excluding such property as is by law exempt from taxation. The  
40 proceeds of the taxes levied pursuant to this subsection must be used  
41 exclusively for the repayment of bonded indebtedness issued  
42 pursuant to the provisions of chapter 6, Statutes of Nevada 2001,  
43 Special Session. Notwithstanding the provisions of NRS 361.453 to  
44 the contrary, the levies imposed pursuant to this subsection must not  
45 be included in calculating the limitation set forth in subsection 1 of



1 NRS 361.453 on the total ad valorem tax levied for all public  
2 purposes.

3 3. The proceeds of the taxes levied by this section are hereby  
4 appropriated for each fiscal year to the Consolidated Bond Interest  
5 and Redemption Fund to discharge the obligations of the State of  
6 Nevada as they are respectively due in that fiscal year. Any balance  
7 of the money appropriated by this section remaining at the end of  
8 the respective fiscal years does not revert to the State General Fund.

9 **Sec. 21.** 1. On or before July 1, 2003, and July 1, 2004, the  
10 State Controller shall estimate the amount of proceeds of the taxes  
11 levied by section 20 of this act. If the amount is less than the total  
12 obligation of the State of Nevada for payment of the interest on and  
13 principal of bonds which will become due in the fiscal year, he shall  
14 reserve in the State General Fund an amount which is sufficient to  
15 pay the remainder of the total obligation. The State Controller may  
16 revise the estimate and amount reserved.

17 2. If the money in the Consolidated Bond Interest and  
18 Redemption Fund is insufficient to pay those obligations as they  
19 become due, the State Controller shall cause the money in reserve to  
20 be transferred from the State General Fund to the Consolidated  
21 Bond Interest and Redemption Fund. The amount reserved is hereby  
22 contingently appropriated for that purpose. Any balance of the sums  
23 appropriated by this subsection remaining at the end of the  
24 respective fiscal years must not be committed for expenditure after  
25 June 30 of the respective fiscal years and reverts to the State  
26 General Fund as soon as all payments of money committed have  
27 been made.

28 3. The State Controller shall report to the Legislature or, if the  
29 Legislature is not in session, to the Interim Finance Committee:

30 (a) The amount of any estimate made pursuant to subsection 1  
31 and the amount of money reserved in the State General Fund based  
32 upon the estimate;

33 (b) The amount of money transferred from the State General  
34 Fund pursuant to subsection 2; and

35 (c) The amount of money which reverts to the State General  
36 Fund pursuant to subsection 2.

37 **Sec. 22.** The State Board of Finance, in its capacity as the  
38 State General Obligation Bond Commission and to the extent that  
39 money is available, shall pay the expenses related to the issuance of  
40 general obligation bonds approved by the 72nd Session of the  
41 Nevada Legislature from the proceeds of those bonds.

42 **Sec. 23.** Expenditure of the following sums not appropriated  
43 from the State General Fund or the State Highway Fund is hereby  
44 authorized from the Consolidated Bond Interest and Redemption  
45 Fund in the amount of \$95,917,942 for the fiscal year beginning



1 July 1, 2003, and ending June 30, 2004, and in the amount of  
2 \$98,844,192 for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2004, and ending  
3 June 30, 2005.

4 **Sec. 24.** With the approval of the Interim Finance Committee,  
5 the State Public Works Board and the University and Community  
6 College System of Nevada may transfer appropriated and authorized  
7 money from one project to another within the same agency or within  
8 the University and Community College System of Nevada for those  
9 projects listed in sections 1, 6, 11, 15 and 25 of this act.

10 **Sec. 25.** The money collected pursuant to the annual tax on  
11 slot machines imposed pursuant to NRS 463.385 that is distributed  
12 to the Special Capital Construction Fund for Higher Education,  
13 except any amount of that money which is needed to pay the  
14 principal and interest on bonds, is appropriated to the State Public  
15 Works Board for the following capital improvement projects for the  
16 University and Community College System of Nevada:

Description	Project No.	Amount
Campus Improvements-UNLV .....03-U2L		\$1,821,147
Campus Improvements-UNR.....03-U3L		\$2,438,630
Campus Improvements-CCSN.....03-U4L		\$282,107
Campus Improvements-DRI .....03-U5L		\$109,972
Campus Improvements-GBC.....03-U6L		\$45,187
Campus Improvements-TMCC .....03-U7L		\$302,957

26 **Sec. 26.** Any remaining balance of the appropriation made by  
27 section 25 of this act must not be committed for expenditure after  
28 June 30, 2007, and reverts to the fund of origin as soon as all  
29 payments of money committed have been made.

30 **Sec. 27.** Section 3 of chapter 478, Statutes of Nevada 1997, as  
31 last amended by section 38 of chapter 585, Statutes of Nevada 2001,  
32 at pages 3007 and 3008, is hereby amended to read as follows:

33 Sec. 3. 1. Except as otherwise provided in this section,  
34 any remaining balance of the appropriations made by section  
35 1 of chapter 478, Statutes of Nevada 1997, at page 1827, must  
36 not be committed for expenditure after June 30, 2001, and  
37 reverts to the State General Fund as soon as all payments of  
38 money committed have been made.

39 2. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 3, any  
40 remaining balance of the appropriations made by section 1 of  
41 chapter 478, Statutes of Nevada 1997, at page 1827, for  
42 projects enumerated in section 17 of chapter 542, Statutes of  
43 Nevada 1999, at page 2830, must not be committed for  
44 expenditure after June 30, 2003, and reverts to the State



\* S B 5 0 7 \*

1 General Fund as soon as all payments of money committed  
2 have been made.

3 3. Any remaining balance of the appropriations made by  
4 section 1 of chapter 478, Statutes of Nevada 1997, at page  
5 1827, for projects enumerated in section 19 of ~~{this act,}~~  
6 *chapter 585, Statutes of Nevada 2001, at page 3000*, must  
7 not be committed for expenditure after June 30, 2005, and  
8 reverts to the State General Fund as soon as all payments of  
9 money committed have been made.

10 4. Any remaining balance of the appropriations made by  
11 section 1 of chapter 478, Statutes of Nevada 1997, at page  
12 1827, for the following projects, must not be committed for  
13 expenditure after June 30, 2002, and reverts to the State  
14 General Fund as soon as all payments of money committed  
15 have been made:

Description	Project No.
(a) Chapel, southern Nevada veterans' cemetery .....	97-C20
(b) Phase III expansion, southern Nevada veterans' cemetery .....	97-C20L
(c) Replace domestic water supply line, SNMRS .....	97-M10
(d) Replace doors and locks, housing units 1-3, NNCC.....	97-M27
(e) Statewide fire sprinkler program .....	97-S3
(f) Statewide paving .....	97-S5
(g) Campus improvements, TMCC .....	97-U7

31  
32 5. Any remaining balance of the appropriations made by  
33 section 1 of chapter 478, Statutes of Nevada 1997, at page  
34 1827, for project 97-C16, southern Nevada veterans' home,  
35 must not be committed for expenditure after June 30, ~~2001,~~  
36 *2004*, and reverts to the State General Fund as soon as all  
37 payments of money committed have been made.

38 **Sec. 28.** Section 11 of chapter 478, Statutes of Nevada 1997,  
39 as last amended by section 40 of chapter 585, Statutes of Nevada  
40 2001, at page 3008, is hereby amended to read as follows:

41 Sec. 11. 1. Except as otherwise provided in this  
42 section, any remaining balance of the allocated amounts  
43 authorized in section 10 of chapter 478, Statutes of Nevada  
44 1997, at page 1832, must not be committed for expenditure  
45 after June 30, 2001, and reverts to the bond interest and



1 redemption account in the Consolidated Bond Interest and  
2 Redemption Fund as soon as all payments of money  
3 committed have been made.

4 2. ~~[Any]~~ *Except as otherwise provided in subsection 4,*  
5 *any* remaining balance of the allocated amounts authorized in  
6 section 10 of chapter 478, Statutes of Nevada 1997, at page  
7 1832, for projects enumerated in section 17 of chapter 542,  
8 Statutes of Nevada 1999, at page 2830, must not be  
9 committed for expenditure after June 30, 2003, and reverts to  
10 the Bond Interest and Redemption Account in the  
11 Consolidated Bond Interest and Redemption Fund as soon as  
12 all payments of money committed have been made.

13 3. Any remaining balance of the allocated amounts  
14 authorized in section 10 of chapter 478, Statutes of Nevada  
15 1997, at page 1832, for projects enumerated in section 19 of  
16 ~~[this act,]~~ *chapter 585, Statutes of Nevada 2001, at page*  
17 *3000,* must not be committed for expenditure after June 30,  
18 2005, and reverts to the Bond Interest and Redemption  
19 Account in the Consolidated Bond Interest and Redemption  
20 Fund as soon as all payments of money committed have been  
21 made.

22 4. *Any remaining balance of the allocated amounts*  
23 *authorized in section 10 of chapter 478, Statutes of Nevada*  
24 *1997, at page 1832, for project 97-C15, Lied Library,*  
25 *UNLV, must not be committed for expenditure after*  
26 *June 30, 2005, and reverts to the Bond Interest and*  
27 *Redemption Account in the Consolidated Bond Interest and*  
28 *Redemption Fund as soon as all payments of money*  
29 *committed have been made.*

30 **Sec. 29.** Section 3 of chapter 542, Statutes of Nevada 1999, as  
31 amended by section 43 of chapter 585, Statutes of Nevada 2001, at  
32 page 3010, is hereby amended as follows:

33 Sec. 3. 1. Except as otherwise provided in ~~[subsection~~  
34 ~~2.]~~ *this section,* any remaining balance of the allocated  
35 amounts authorized in sections 1 and 2 of chapter 542,  
36 Statutes of Nevada 1999, at pages 2822 to 2826, inclusive,  
37 must not be committed for expenditure after June 30, 2003,  
38 and reverts to the Bond Interest and Redemption Account in  
39 the Consolidated Bond Interest and Redemption Fund as soon  
40 as all payments of money committed have been made.

41 2. Any remaining balance of the allocated amounts  
42 authorized in section 1 of chapter 542, Statutes of Nevada  
43 1999, at page 2822, for projects enumerated in section 20 of  
44 ~~[this act,]~~ *chapter 585, Statutes of Nevada 2001, at page*  
45 *3002,* must not be committed for expenditure after June 30,



2005, and reverts to the Bond Interest and Redemption Account in the Consolidated Bond Interest and Redemption Fund as soon as all payments of money committed have been made.

3. Any remaining balance of the allocated amounts authorized in section 1 of chapter 542, Statutes of Nevada 1999, at page 2822, for the following projects, must not be committed for expenditure after June 30, 2004, and reverts to the Bond Interest and Redemption Account in the Consolidated Bond Interest and Redemption Fund as soon as all payments of money committed have been made:

<i>Description</i>	<i>Project No.</i>
(a) New supply administration facility, Carson City .....	99-C3
(b) SNAMHS, advance planning for psychiatric emergency crisis center.....	99-C7
(c) Capitol complex conduit system, phase II, Carson City.....	99-C8
(d) Enclose pavilion at Veteran's Cemetery, Fernley.....	99-C9
(e) Law School Renovation, UNLV .....	99-C12
(f) Science building on West Charleston campus, CCSN.....	99-C14
(g) Library and student center, WNCC .....	99-C17
(h) High-Tech learning center, Green Valley, CCSN .....	99-C28L
(i) Statewide ADA program .....	99-S2

4. Any remaining balance of the allocated amounts authorized in section 1 of chapter 542, Statutes of Nevada 1999, at page 2822, for the following projects, must not be committed for expenditure after June 30, 2005, and reverts to the Bond Interest and Redemption Account in the Consolidated Bond Interest and Redemption Fund as soon as all payments of money committed have been made:

<i>Description</i>	<i>Project No.</i>
(a) Lied Library Furnishings, UNLV .....	99-C11
(b) Redfield campus, phase I, UNR .....	99-C13





- 1 (c) *Student development center,*
- 2 *TMCC..... 99-C16*
- 3 (d) *High-Tech learning center, TMCC..... 99-C37L*
- 4 (e) *Provide second exit from*
- 5 *dormitories and install fire*
- 6 *sprinklers at Caliente Youth*
- 7 *Center.....99-M1*
- 8 (f) *Repair/remodel multipurpose*
- 9 *building and replace ceiling*
- 10 *and wall covers in the*
- 11 *gymnasium, NYTC, Elko.....99-M22*
- 12 (g) *Library Upgrade building data*
- 13 *systems/wiring for Capitol*
- 14 *Complex and Sawyer*
- 15 *Building, Carson City and Las*
- 16 *Vegas.....99-M26*
- 17 (h) *Statewide asbestos, lead and*
- 18 *indoor air quality program..... 99-S6*

19

20 **5. Any remaining balance of the allocated amounts**

21 **authorized in section 1 of chapter 542, Statutes of Nevada**

22 **1999, at page 2822, for projects enumerated in section 9 of**

23 **this act, must not be committed for expenditure after**

24 **June 30, 2007, and reverts to the Bond Interest and**

25 **Redemption Account in the Consolidated Bond Interest and**

26 **Redemption Fund as soon as all payments of money**

27 **committed have been made.**

28 **Sec. 30.** Section 9 of chapter 542, Statutes of Nevada 1999, as

29 amended by section 45 of chapter 585, Statutes of Nevada 2001, at

30 page 3010, is hereby amended to read as follows:

- 31 Sec. 9. ~~Any~~
- 32 **1. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 2, any**
- 33 **remaining balance of the appropriations made by section 7 of**
- 34 **chapter 542, Statutes of Nevada 1999, at page 2828, must not**
- 35 **be committed for expenditure after June 30, 2003, and reverts**
- 36 **to the State Highway Fund as soon as all payments of money**
- 37 **committed have been made.**
- 38 **2. Any remaining balance of the appropriations made**
- 39 **by section 7 of chapter 542, Statutes of Nevada 1999, at**
- 40 **page 2828, for projects 99-H1, new highway patrol building,**
- 41 **Las Vegas, and 99-H2, covered parking at highway patrol**
- 42 **facility, Las Vegas, must not be committed for expenditure**
- 43 **after June 30, 2005, and reverts to the fund of origin as**
- 44 **soon as all payments of money committed have been made.**



1 **Sec. 31.** Section 19 of chapter 542, Statutes of Nevada 1999,  
2 as amended by section 46 of chapter 585, Statutes of Nevada 2001,  
3 at pages 3010 and 3011, is hereby amended to read as follows:

4 Sec. 19. 1. Except as otherwise provided in  
5 ~~[subsection 2.]~~ *this section*, any remaining balance of the  
6 allocated amounts in section 18 of chapter 542, Statutes of  
7 Nevada 1999, at page 2830, must not be committed for  
8 expenditure after June 30, 2003, and reverts to the fund of  
9 origin as soon as all payments of money committed have been  
10 made.

11 2. Any remaining balance of the allocated amounts  
12 authorized in section 18 of chapter 542, Statutes of Nevada  
13 1999, at page 2830, for projects enumerated in section 20 of  
14 ~~[this act.]~~ *chapter 585, Statutes of Nevada 2001, at page*  
15 *3002*, must not be committed for expenditure after June 30,  
16 2005, and reverts to the fund of origin as soon as all payments  
17 of money committed have been made.

18 3. *Any remaining balance of the allocated amounts*  
19 *authorized in section 18 of chapter 542, Statutes of Nevada*  
20 *1999, at page 2830, for the following projects must not be*  
21 *committed for expenditure after June 30, 2004, and reverts*  
22 *to the fund of origin as soon as all payments of money*  
23 *committed have been made:*

<i>Description</i>	<i>Project No.</i>
(a) <i>New supply administration facility, Office of the Military, Carson City .....</i>	<i>99-C3</i>
(b) <i>Library and student services building, WNCC .....</i>	<i>99-C17</i>
(c) <i>Statewide ADA Program .....</i>	<i>99-S2</i>

34 4. *Any remaining balance of the allocated amounts*  
35 *authorized in section 18 of chapter 542, Statutes of Nevada*  
36 *1999, at page 2830, for the following projects must not be*  
37 *committed for expenditure after June 30, 2005, and reverts*  
38 *to the fund of origin as soon as all payments of money*  
39 *committed have been made:*

<i>Description</i>	<i>Project No.</i>
(a) <i>Lied Library Furnishings, UNLV .....</i>	<i>99-C11</i>
(b) <i>Omega fire sprinkler program.....</i>	<i>99-S3L</i>



1 **Sec. 32.** Section 3 of chapter 585, Statutes of Nevada 2001, at  
2 page 2995, is hereby amended to read as follows:

3 Sec. 3. ~~[Any]~~

4 *1. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 2, any*  
5 *remaining balance of the appropriations made by section 2 of*  
6 *~~[this act]~~ chapter 585, Statutes of Nevada 2001, at page*  
7 *2993, must not be committed for expenditure after June 30,*  
8 *2005, and reverts to the State General Fund as soon as all*  
9 *payments of money committed have been made.*

10 *2. Any remaining balance of the appropriations made*  
11 *by section 2 of chapter 585, Statutes of Nevada 2001, at*  
12 *page 2993, for the following projects, must not be committed*  
13 *for expenditure after June 30, 2007, and reverts to the State*  
14 *General Fund as soon as all payments of money committed*  
15 *have been made:*

<i>Description</i>	<i>Project No.</i>
<i>(a) Upgrade exercise areas of units 1-8 at ESP.....</i>	<i>01-M30</i>
<i>(b) Replace windows in housing units 1-4 at NNCC.....</i>	<i>01-M33</i>
<i>(c) Upgrade pedestrian entrance area at SDCC .....</i>	<i>01-M38</i>

25 **Sec. 33.** Section 5 of chapter 585, Statutes of Nevada 2001, at  
26 page 2997, is hereby amended to read as follows:

27 Sec. 5. ~~[Any]~~

28 *1. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 2, any*  
29 *remaining balance of the allocated amounts authorized in*  
30 *section 4 of ~~[this act]~~ chapter 585, Statutes of Nevada 2001,*  
31 *at page 2995, must not be committed for expenditure after*  
32 *June 30, 2005, and reverts to the Bond Interest and*  
33 *Redemption Account in the Consolidated Bond Interest and*  
34 *Redemption Fund as soon as all payments of money*  
35 *committed have been made.*

36 *2. Any remaining balance of the allocated amounts*  
37 *authorized in section 4 of chapter 585, Statutes of Nevada*  
38 *2001, at page 2995, for project 01-C4, New State Motor Pool*  
39 *building, must not be committed for expenditure after*  
40 *June 30, 2007, and reverts to the Bond Interest and*  
41 *Redemption Account in the Consolidated Bond Interest and*  
42 *Redemption Fund as soon as all payments of money*  
43 *committed have been made.*



\* S B 5 0 7 \*

1 **Sec. 34.** Section 13 of chapter 585, Statutes of Nevada 2001,  
2 at page 2998, is hereby amended to read as follows:

- 3 Sec. 13. ~~[Any]~~
- 4 *1. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 2, any*  
5 *remaining balance of the appropriations made by section 12*  
6 *of ~~[this act]~~ chapter 585, statutes of Nevada 2001, at page*  
7 *2998, must not be committed for expenditure after June 30,*  
8 *2005, and reverts to the State Highway Fund as soon as all*  
9 *payments of money committed have been made.*
- 10 *2. Any remaining balance of the appropriations made*  
11 *by section 12 of chapter 585, Statutes of Nevada 2001, at*  
12 *page 2998, for project 01-M1, Renovate HVAC system in*  
13 *east wing of DMV & PS building, Carson City, must not be*  
14 *committed for expenditure after June 30, 2007, and reverts*  
15 *to the State Highway Fund as soon as all payments of*  
16 *money committed have been made.*

17 **Sec. 35.** Section 15 of chapter 585, Statutes of Nevada 2001,  
18 at page 2998, is hereby amended to read as follows:

- 19 Sec. 15. 1. Except as otherwise provided in subsection  
20 2, the ~~[following expenditures are]~~ *expenditure of*  
21 *\$15,000,000 from money credited to the account of the State*  
22 *of Nevada in the Unemployment Trust Fund pursuant to 42*  
23 *U.S.C. § 1103 is hereby authorized to support the State Public*  
24 *Works Board in carrying out the program of capital*  
25 *improvements summarized in this section for the project*  
26 *numbered and described in the executive budget for the Fiscal*  
27 *Years 2001-2002 and 2002-2003 or otherwise described as*  
28 *project 01-E1, new office building for Employment Security*  
29 *Division . ‡*
- 30 ~~—(a) From the Employment Security Fund created pursuant~~  
31 ~~to NRS 612.615, \$1,000,000; and~~
- 32 ~~—(b) From money credited to the account of the State of~~  
33 ~~Nevada in the Unemployment Trust Fund pursuant to 42~~  
34 ~~U.S.C. § 1103, \$3,000,000.]~~
- 35 2. The amount which may be expended during a fiscal  
36 year pursuant to ~~[paragraph (b) of]~~ subsection 1 must not  
37 exceed the amount by which the aggregate of the amounts  
38 credited to the account of this state pursuant to 42 U.S.C. §  
39 1103 during that fiscal year and the 24 preceding fiscal years  
40 exceeds the aggregate of the amounts expended pursuant to  
41 NRS 612.617 and charged against the amounts credited to the  
42 account of this state during any of those 25 fiscal years. If the  
43 provisions of this subsection limit the amount of funding  
44 authorized pursuant to ~~[paragraph (b) of]~~ subsection 1, the  
45 Interim Finance Committee may authorize ~~[additional]~~



1 funding from the Employment Security Fund to fund the  
2 project. The expenditures authorized pursuant to this section  
3 must not exceed ~~[\$4,000,000]~~ \$15,000,000 from all sources  
4 unless an increased amount is approved by the Legislature or,  
5 if the Legislature is not in session, by the Interim Finance  
6 Committee.

7 3. ~~[Any remaining balance of the allocated amount in  
8 paragraph (a) of subsection 1 must not be committed for  
9 expenditure after June 30, 2005, and reverts to the  
10 Employment Security Fund as soon as all payments of money  
11 committed have been made.~~

12 ~~—4.]~~ Any remaining balance of the allocated amount in  
13 ~~[paragraph (b) of]~~ subsection 1 must not be committed for  
14 expenditure after June 30, ~~[2003,]~~ 2007, and reverts to the  
15 fund of origin as soon as all payments of money committed  
16 have been made.

17 **Sec. 36.** Section 24 of chapter 585, Statutes of Nevada 2001,  
18 at page 3003, is hereby amended to read as follows:

19 Sec. 24. The State Public Works Board shall not  
20 execute a contract for the construction of the following  
21 projects until the Board receives the money authorized for  
22 those projects pursuant to section 23 of ~~[this act:]~~ *chapter*  
23 *585, Statutes of Nevada 2001, at page 3003:*

Description	Project No.
1. Furnishings and build-out, Redfield campus, phase I, UNR .....	01-C16
2. New campus library, UNR.....	01-C24
3. Academic and student services building, NSC.....	01-C25
<del>[4. Telecommunications building on Cheyenne campus, CCSN.....</del>	<del>01-C29L]</del>

34 **Sec. 37.** Section 16 of chapter 585, Statutes of Nevada 2001,  
35 at page 2999, is hereby repealed.

36 **Sec. 38.** The inclusion of project 03-C50 in section 1 of this  
37 act constitutes the legislative approval of the project required  
38 pursuant to NRS 353.550.

39 **Sec. 39.** This act becomes effective upon passage and  
40 approval.



---

---

**TEXT OF REPEALED SECTION OF  
STATUTES OF NEVADA**

---

---

**Section 16 of chapter 585, Statutes of Nevada 2001:**

Sec. 16. 1. At the request of the Department of Employment, Training and Rehabilitation, the State Board of Finance shall issue general obligation bonds of the State of Nevada or a combination of general obligations of the State of Nevada and other securities in the aggregate principal amount of not more than \$4,242,435 for the project numbered and described in the executive budget for the fiscal years 2001-2002 and 2002-2003 or otherwise described as project 01-E1, new office building for Employment Security Division.

2. The amount of the bonds and the timing of the issuance of the bonds must be determined by the State Treasurer and representatives of the Department of Employment, Training and Rehabilitation.

3. Following the issuance of the bonds authorized by subsection 1, the Department of Employment, Training and Rehabilitation shall pay or transfer from the appropriate fund maintained by the department to the State Treasurer the amounts necessary to pay the principal and interest due on the bonds as directed by the State Treasurer.

4. The provisions of the State Securities Law, set forth in NRS 349.150 to 349.364, inclusive, apply to the issuance of bonds pursuant to the provisions of this section.

